
 

NYCHA RFP to Implement a Community-Driven Preservation 
and Investment Strategy for Fulton and Elliott-Chelsea 

 

1st Round of Questions and Answers  

*The following  represent a set of responses to questions asked during the May 5th Pre-Submission 
Conference or received as of May 11, 2021. Note that all Defined Terms relate to the definitions provided 
within the RFP. 

 
1. Are you anticipating one owner or mixed ownership?  

• A: Project Teams must submit proposals that address the entirety of the Project. Within 

that requirement, and all other requirements and criteria within the RFP, Applicants can 

decide how they want to organize and form their joint venture/arrangements between 

different entities in order to form a team best equipped to take on the Project. 

2. Are there prevailing wage requirements on the RAD project? What about the new 

construction portion?  

• A: As a general matter, renovations funded through PACT must comply with Davis 

Bacon. If any financing sources are proposed that trigger Davis-Bacon and/or if the new 

construction is a part of the same financing transaction as the PACT project, then 

prevailing wage would be triggered. 

3. Is it a requirement for the NYCHA PACT work to be completed before new construction 

begins, or can the new construction commence first? 

• A: PACT renovations must be substantially complete before any new construction can 

begin on the campus. 

4. How does “Infill Site F&E” relate to site F and site E? Does it have to be chosen in 

conjunction with F and E or can it be developed on its own? 

• A: The site between Sites E & F “Infill Site F&E” does not have to be developed in 

conjunction with Sites E & F and may be developed into new commercial or community 

facility (1-2 stories) apart from the retail retrofit of Sites E and F.   

5. Is the developer fee 50/50 for the new construction as well? 

• A: Developer fee should be 50/50 with NYCHA for initial proposals. 

6. Did I understand correctly that Developer, GC, and PM not in the new PACT Partner 

prequalified list can participate in the RFP? 

• A: RFP is open to all respondents; applicants do not need to be on the PACT Pre-

Qualified list to submit.  

7. Please provide more details on the right-sizing process contemplated for the project.  

What is the Committee's position on right sizing?   

• A: NYCHA’s Leased Housing Division will list units severely over-housed and under-

housed in the buildings. The Working Group recommended that when a household is 

obligated to right-size, the developer should provide upfront funding for moving expenses 
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alongside any assistance provided through the Human Resources Administration (HRA). 

Residents should also be provided assistance through the PACT Social Service Provider 

to navigate HRA’s application process. 

8. How is NYCHA approaching land value for lots for new construction? 

• A: The basis for the valuation of the new construction component should be a traditional 

real estate income valuation. We expect teams to (1) start with the potential income 

generated in the relevant new construction scheme, taking into account the affordability 

requirements, (2) capitalize this at an appropriate future date to mirror a potential capital 

event, (3) layer in the relevant development related costs, and then (4) appropriately 

discount the resulting cash flows to the date of the anticipated closing. Note that NYCHA 

will also compare the proposed value against a sale comparison approach to valuation in 

the relevant area to assess how competitive the proposal is. Any valuation will be subject 

to review and negotiation by NYCHA. 

9. Has NYCHA done hazardous materials surveys on these facilities? And if not, is it required 

under these contracts? Are there known environmental issues and can you speak to them 

specifically lead paint and mold? 

• A: NYCHA will include available historic information on lead, mold, asbestos and/or other 

hazardous materials within a later Question and Answers document or Addendum to the 

RFP. Additionally, the Designated Project Team will have to conduct their own 

investigations as relates to hazardous materials. If a Project requires abatement of lead-

based paint and lead hazards, Applicants must account for the cost of abatement in the 

PACT Rehabilitation Scope of Work and may not defer abatement or pay for abatement 

through replacement reserves. Similarly, the Designated Project Team must account for 

the cost of addressing underlying sources of mold and leaks in the PACT Rehabilitation 

Scope of Work and may not defer abatement or pay for abatement through replacement 

reserves. Full requirements to address lead-based paint, lead hazards, mold and leaks 

are described in the RFP.   

10. Can you speak more to the process on how the TA will be involved in scoring the RFP? 

• A: Per the Chelsea NYCHA Working Group recommendations, NYCHA and HDC will 

involve resident leaders in the evaluation and selection of Project Teams who submit 

Proposals in response to this RFP. Resident leaders will form a Resident Review 

Committee (composed of 10 –12 residents) who will be trained and given access to all 

Proposal materials (with the exception of personally identifiable information and personal 

asset/financial statements, which will be redacted). Residents who participate on the 

Resident Review Committee will also sign a Confidentiality and Conflict of Interest 

Agreement.  

• As part of the review process, NYCHA and HDC will first evaluate all Proposals according 

to the threshold requirements, and Proposals that pass these requirements will then be 

vetted by NYCHA and HDC according to a series of technical criteria, described in detail 

within the RFP. Following the review of the technical criteria, NYCHA and HDC will 

advance multiple finalist Proposals to be reviewed according to a series of competitive 

criteria, and during this stage of the review process the Resident Review Committee will 

join NYCHA and HDC in scoring the applications. The competitive criteria include 

Property Management Plan, Resident & Community Engagement Plan, Design and 

Program, and Hiring Plan. Furthermore, the Resident Review Committee will join NYCHA 

and HDC in any interviews with finalist teams.  

11. Can NYCHA provide current occupancy data? 
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• A: As of April 2021, the Properties had a 98% occupancy rate. Applicants should assume 

the occupancy rate prescribed in the RFP. More detailed occupancy data will be provided 

upon designation. 

12. Will existing building plans be made available? 

• A: Yes, building plans are available to download through the iSupplier portal. 

13. Hudson Guild is a settlement house with a tradition of providing a broad range of services.  

Other than medical and school facilities, are there specific services HG does not provide 

that the Committee hopes to bring to the site? 

• A: Upon designation, Designated Projects Teams will work directly with NYCHA to 

identify and select a Social Service Coordinator along with other social service providers 

for their site. The Service Coordinator will be responsible for working with residents to 

craft a comprehensive Social Services Plan, which will include: (1) an assessment of 

service, resource, and programming needs at each development.; (2) a plan to provide 

relevant services to residents across all necessary providers and programs through a 

service coordination model, (3) a plan to preserve the services offered by Existing 

Provider(s) for the duration of the Existing Contract(s); (4) a description of how to 

facilitate access to new social services or community amenities and programming; (5) a 

budget for the proposed services and programming; and (6) goals and metrics that the 

social service coordinator will report back to NYCHA on a quarterly basis.  

• Within 60 days of designation, NYCHA will require the Designated Project Team to share 

their initial approach and timeline for creating the Social Services Plan. The final Social 

Services Plan should not be submitted until a Social Service Coordinator has been added 

to the Designated Project Team and Project Teams have conducted a Needs 

Assessment at the Property to determine service and programming needs, but I must be 

submitted prior to the HUD RAD submission or Section 18 application. 

14. Is there flexibility on the exact locations of proposed development sites? Is all zoning as 

of right? 

• A: If new construction is considered as part of an Applicant’s Proposal, it must comply 

with existing zoning regulations and the Working Group’s Design Guidelines described 

within the RFP. However, Applicants have the option of submitting an additional, 

alternative scenario that still achieves the goal of providing comprehensive repairs to the 

four Properties and creating an enhanced built environment with additional amenities for 

NYCHA residents but deviates from existing zoning regulations and the design criteria 

described within the RFP.  If an Applicant chooses to propose a development scheme 

that would require land use changes, then they must describe the necessary zoning relief 

and explain why this approach is necessary to achieve project goals and how it would 

impact the overall Project schedule. Please note, ULURP is not triggered by the 

disposition of NYCHA-owned land but may be required for other types of land use 

actions.   

15. Am I understanding correctly that new housing developments are primarily intended to 

raise capital for PACT repairs? 

• A: Applicants should regard the new housing development opportunities as a secondary 

source of financing to fund any gaps in the Project sources. While the Working Group 

identified multiple locations that might be appropriate for these strategies, Applicants are 

not required to propose new construction at any or all locations. Applicants are expected 

to consider how any new construction would contribute funding to the PACT Component, 

create a financially feasible development scenario(s), and create an enhanced built 

environment with additional amenities for NYCHA residents and their neighbors. The 
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City, HDC, and HPD will not be providing subsidy towards the implementation of these 

strategies. 

16. The LLC I portfolio are exempt to Davis Bacon, what is LLC I Portfolio? How many units 

are in LLC 1? 

• A: The Chelsea development is in NYCHA’s “LLC I” portfolio and includes 425 

apartments.  

17. After Hurricane Sandy, were any of the developments impacted?  What sustainability 

improvements were made after Sandy?  

• A: The Fulton and Elliott-Chelsea Houses were not damaged by Sandy and NYCHA 

Recovery and Resiliency does not have any funding allocated for damages for these 

developments. More information on NYCHA’s Sandy Recovery and Progress can be 

found here: https://www1.nyc.gov/site/nycha/about/recovery-resiliency.page  

• The Working Group Report included a comprehensive set of recommendations related to 

flood resiliency (see p. 38 in the Working Group Report for more detail) that should, to the 

greatest extent possible, be incorporated into the Project. 

18. Can you tell us more about the conversion from Con Edison Steam? 

• A: The current heating system is a central system with underground piping between 

multiple buildings on each Property. Pipes run from a direct connection off the street to 

the Con Edison steam service. If there is a break in an underground distribution line, 

multiple buildings lose heat. In connection with this Project, the Designated Project Team 

must replace the existing heating system with individual building heating systems, 

including new distribution piping to and throughout all apartments, as required. The RFP 

does not provide any requirements about a specific type of system, except for achieving 

an energy efficient system that supports the Sustainability Program. 

19. Are you expecting that the nonprofit developer is a housing nonprofit? and if a social 

service nonprofit participates as part of the team, in a defined meaningful capacity, will 

teams still be required to bring in a third-party provider? 

• A: Please refer to the requirements in the RFP; the nonprofit must be a developer that 

plays a “Meaningful Role” on the Project Team.  Please refer to the RFP for detail on how 

NYCHA defines Meaningful Role. 

20. If obsolescence is determined, can a new construction project be initiated to be 

replacement units or does that have to wait until after the RAD work is completed? 

• A: If obsolescence is determined, the developer would still need to complete full 

conversion/rehabilitation of obsolete sites. NYCHA is not seeking proposals that would 

contemplate residential demolition of existing units. 

21. Does NYCHA expect to be able to do on site property tours or will tours be virtual?  

• A: NYCHA will provide a virtual tour of the site and will inform respondents if an in-person 

tour will be made available.  

22. RFP requests two different RAD-Section 18 unit scenarios. How were these percentages 

selected (compared to past PACT RFPs)? Would the projects be able to utilize the higher 

Section 18 percentage pursuant to the recent HUD guidance, which might permit up to 

80% section 18 units? 

• A: The scenarios are consistent with the PACT RFEIs, however HUD updated them 

recently so there is a slight shift from the most recent blends.  

• The first determination is, is the site ‘obsolete’?  

i. If yes and the site is converting with another RAD site, then it can proceed with 

100% S18 units or if NYCHA prefers to maintain (as we anticipate will apply to all 

obsolete sites in Fulton-Elliot Chelsea).  

https://www1.nyc.gov/site/nycha/about/recovery-resiliency.page
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ii. If yes and the site is not converting with another RAD site, then it will need to 

proceed 90% S18 / 10% RAD to ensure RAD tenant protections to all tenants (in 

both S18 and RAD tenants). We do not anticipate this blend to apply to this RFP.  

• If a site is not obsolete, then the next determination is how the eligible hard costs 

compare to HUD’s Housing Construction Costs (HCC - as described in the RFP),  

i. If eligible costs are greater than or equal to 90% of HUD’s HCC, then the site is 

eligible for a conversion at 80% S18 / 20% RAD. 

ii. If eligible costs are greater than or equal to 60% of HUD’s HCC, then the site is 

eligible for a conversion at 40% S18 / 60% RAD. (Note that we anticipate any 

and all sites in this RFP will meet this threshold at a minimum.)  

23. Can NYCHA provide more details regarding the terms of its purchase option? 

• A: All relevant detail needed at this point in the process can be found in the RFP.  

24. Regarding no public subsidy, does that include tax exemptions? 

• A: Respondents cannot assume any direct public subsidy (LIHTC, City Capital, etc). 

However, as-of-right tax incentives may be assumed. For example, for the purpose of this 

response, if a respondent is proposing residential infill, then they can assume 421-a 

under current program rules or other similar tax incentives, which will be emulated 

through a PILOT. NYCHA will work with the selected team to finalize the terms of any 

PILOT agreement for City review and approval. 

25. Can NYCHA explain how the working group estimated the total number of new 

construction units? What were the total square footages of the developments and average 

unit sizes assumed? 

• A: Detailed information on assumptions used for new construction sites by the Chelsea 

Working Group may be found in Appendix D of the Chelsea NYCHA Working Group 

Report: https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/nycha/downloads/pdf/Chelsea-NYCHA-WG-Report-

Final.pdf  

26. Can another round of Q&A be added in June/July? 

• A: If NYCHA hosts another Pre-Submission Conference in June, we will have another 

round of Q&A; however, questions can be submitted to the following email address at any 

time: rfp.procurement@nycha.nyc.gov  

27. Will Pre-Submission Conference presentation slides be posted? 

• A: Yes the presentation and a recording of the Pre-Submission conference will be posted 

to https://www1.nyc.gov/site/nycha/about/pact/procurement.page  
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